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  THE    CITY    OF    WALTHAM                                     
     MASSACHUSETTS 

 
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT 

 
Assessment Center to Hire-Select the Deputy Police Chief 

 
 A D D E N D U M   N O. 2                                               September 28th, 2020   
  

CHANGES, CORRECTIONS AND CLARIFICATIONS 
                                                                                                                       
The attention of bidders submitting proposals for the above subject project is called 
to the following addendum to the specifications. The items set forth herein, 
whether of omission, addition, substitution or clarification are all to be included in 
and form a part of the proposal submitted. 
  
THE NUMBER OF THIS ADDENDUM (NO. 2) MUST BE ACKNOWLEDGED IN YOUR 
COVER LETTER. 

 
ITEM 1: ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS 
 
Q1.   Would the City please provide at this time a complete copy of the Delegation Agreement 
with Civil Service?  
A1.  See “Attachment A” 
  
Q2.    Would the City please provide at this time a complete copy of the language of any collective-
bargaining agreement or other document which may affect the design and conduct of the 
assessment center?  
A2. See “Attachment B & C” 
 
  
Q3.   Would the City please agree to waive the requirement for the submission of a weekly 
performance record as stated in General Conditions, Section 7, Personnel? We have never in 39 
years of practice seen a requirement for this kind of weekly report.  
A3. Yes. 
  
Q4.   Regarding Technical Specifications, Section 3.0.k., will the City agree to accept a list of 10 jobs 
performed in the last two (2) years rather than all jobs as now stated? Our firm has completed 
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about 50 jobs in the last two (2) years and, obviously, providing contact information for 50 
projects would be unduly onerous. 
A4.  Yes. 
  
Q5.    Regarding Scope of Work, Section 4.a.c., will the City agree that assessors need to be 
approved only by the City's Human Resource Department? Civil Service has never been involved in 
the approval of assessors and the consultant obviously cannot leave wide open the approval, as 
this section now states, to "...others as required."  
A5. If not required by HRD, yes the City’s Human Resources will approve.  
  
Q6.    Is the City aware that the use of points in the evaluation of proposals directly contravenes 
the language of the Massachusetts Uniform Procurement Act, MGL c. 30B and is forbidden? Please 
see MGL c. 30B, Section 6(e) which states in part:  
A6. Please delete the numeric evaluation points from the comparative evaluation section 6. 
  
Q7.    Regarding Technical Specifications, Scope of Work, Section 4.b., Review Assessment Center 
with City Departments, HRD has never had any role in approving a study guide.  
A7. If not required by HRD, the City’s Human Resources will approve. 
  
Q8.    Regarding Technical Specifications, Scope of Work, Section 4.c., Send Out Notices for 
Assessment Center: since Civil Service revamped its computer system and the processing of 
applications for these kinds of examinations about two (2) years ago, all notices are provided by 
the Civil Service system and neither the consultant nor the City has any responsibility for providing 
notices to candidates. This includes the drafting of the poster, which Civil Service now does, based 
on information provided by the City and the consultant. The City's only responsibility here is the 
posting of the poster.  
A8. OK HRD will send notices. 
  
Q9.   Regarding the page entitled "Agreement" and the next-to-last sentence on this page, 
completion of this project will take well more than 60 days mainly due to Civil Service/HRD 
procedures. For example, HRD's recently revised procedure states that the assessment center 
cannot take place less than 60 days after the final date for submission of candidates' applications 
for the Deputy Police Chief's position. This does not include preparatory tasks such as the job 
analysis or subsequent tasks such as the conduct of the assessment center itself.  
A9. Change the project completion time to 180 days from the date of the Notice to Proceed 
(NTP). 
  
Q10.  What firms have provided promotional services to the Waltham Police Department since 
January 1, 2015?  
A10. None, the City has not done any assessment centers.  
  
Q11.   Would the City please clarify how many references are required? We note that the fourth 
page from the end of the RFP is entitled Provide Three (3) Service Appropriate References. 
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However, Technical Specifications, Section 3.k. requires five references; Minimum Evaluation 
Criteria, Section 5.c., requires four references; and the page entitled Compliance requires three 
references.  
A11. No Less than three (3) service appropriate references shall be provided.  
  
Q12.   There does not appear to be any difference between the comparative criteria stated under 
Deputy Police Chief Experience for Highly Advantageous or Advantageous. The only difference is in 
the indefinite article "a" for Advantageous. please clarify.  
A12. Change the comparative criteria under Deputy Police Chief Experience for Highly 
Advantageous to: “The bidder has conducted assessment centers used in a selection process for 
Deputy Police Chief in a City similar in size to Waltham.” 
  
Q13.   How many copies of the Non-Price Technical Proposal does the City wish to receive?  
A13. Attach four (4) copies of the Non-Price proposal printed on one side and bound with a 
single staple in the top left corner. Mark one copy as “Original”.  
  
Q14.   How many copies of the Price Proposal does the City wish to receive?  
A14. One (1) copy marked “Original” shall be submitted with your response 
 
 

 
 

End of Addendum 2 
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ATTACHMENT C








































































































































































